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City of Seattle

Request for Proposal (RFP)# CTY-2664
Addendum
Updated 01/29/10


The following additional information regarding the RFP #CTY-2664, titled City of Seattle Collection Services released on January 15, 2010.  The Proposal due date of February 5, 2010 @ 3:00 pm is revised to February 8, 2010 @ 3:00 pm.  

The pre-proposal conference provided a forum for a relatively informal dialog between prospective RFP proposers and City of Seattle spokespeople in an attempt to clarify the City’s requirements.  The following set of questions and answers is NOT a verbatim account of that discussion.  What is presented here is an attempt to capture the essence of each question asked at the conference along with an answer that is more considered and researched than that given in the discussion.  In some cases the answer is simply changed for grammatical correctness, whereas, in other cases, the answer may appear totally different.  
Regardless of the differences between the dialog that took place on 01/25/10 and this document, this document is the official response to the questions offered in the Pre-Proposal Conference.  

This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded/clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.

From:  Carmalinda Vargas-Thompson, Buyer

City of Seattle Purchasing

Phone:  206-615-1123; Fax 206-233-5155

Email Address:  Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	RFP Revisions

	1
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	Schedule of Events:    The period of time between when questions are due and when the proposal is due leaves little time to adjust our proposal once the City’s responses are published. Also, completing the Outreach Plan requires some research. As such, please consider extending the proposal deadline by five to 10 business days. We believe this would result in stronger for proposals for the City to consider.
	The Proposal due date of February 5, 2010 @ 3:00 pm is revised to February 8, 2010 @ 3:00 pm.  


	

	2
	01/28/10
	01/28/10
	
	Revision:  City revises Format and Response document for City Collections, CTY -2664 

Additional response includes:

1. Pre-collection  recovery rates

2. Secondary collection recover rates

3. Request for 3 references
	Revision – Proposal Format and Response 01/28/10:
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	3
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	How will the City validate recovery rates?
	The City will take a look at and compare utility to utility, business debt to business debt and consumer debt to consumer debt.   

See Section 8 – Evaluation Process and Criteria for complete evaluation process
	Addition:  Section 8 Evaluation Process:  Step #3 Interviews and Reference Checks:   

In addition to reserving the right to interview the top ranked proposer, the City will contact users of the Vendor’s services for references. References will be rated on a pass/fail basis. Those vendors receiving a failed reference may be disqualified from consideration.  The City may use any former client, whether or not they have been submitted by the company as references, and the City may choose to serve as a reference if the City has had former work or current work performed by the company. Although the City anticipates completing reference checks at this point in the process, the evaluation committee may contact the client references of the companies or other sources in addition to those specifically provided by the Company, at any time to assist the City in understanding the service.

Round 3
  Pass/Fail

	4
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	To how many vendors are you seeking to award a contract?
	Single Award:  With this solicitation, the City intends to make one award and does not anticipate award to multiple companies.  Regardless, the City reserves the right to make multiple or partial awards.
	

	5
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	Who are the incumbents, and how long have the incumbents been providing the requested services?
	 The incumbent NCO has provided service since March 2002.
	

	6
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	Will accounts be primary placements, not having been serviced by any other outside collection agency, and/or will you also be referring secondary placements?

 If so, should bidders provide proposed fees for secondary placements also? 
	3a.  Placements will predominantly be “primary accounts”.  

3b  At the time the City is not referring secondary placements to the vendor, however,  the City reserves the right to place secondary placements with the awarded Vendor.  Bidder should provide fees for secondary placement
	

	7
	01/15/10
	01/26/10
	If the City collections contract is awarded to a new Vendor, will the current referrals residing with the incumbent Vendor be pulled and given to the awarded Vendor?
	Yes. These will be considered secondary placements.
	

	8
	01/15/10
	01/26/10
	Under secondary collections, it would seem for Seattle City Light, there is a potential of having an additional 20 – 30 million referrals to validate and collect again in a year. 
	Yes
	

	9
	01/15/10
	01/26/10
	With regards to the Pre-collect process, is that being done internally or with a third party?
	One department, Seattle Dept. of Transportation, is using a 3rd party Vendor.  


	

	10
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	What is the total dollar value of accounts available for placement now by category, including any backlog?
	The City will likely place the 2009 debt with the agency.  See Section 4 in the RFP.  
	

	11
	
	
	Does the City have a Statute Limitation?
	Yes, for legal action there is a 6 years.  The City would not be sending debt as old as 6 years.
	

	12
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	What current contingency fees or other fees are currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category?
To clarify, we’re trying to find out that if any vendors are under contract, and what their rates are.
	· Pre-Collections for Seattle Dept. of Transportation (SDOT):   PMT Solutions

· Secondary Collections for City Treasury:  PMT Solutions.
· Current City Collection Services – NCO Financial System.

· Court Collection Services - AllianceOne

All Vendor contracts can be located in the City of Seattle’s Web Site:  http://www2.cityofseattle.net/purchasing/vendorcontracts/default.asp

	

	13
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	What is the average age of accounts at placement (at time of award and/or on a going-forward basis), by category?
	This can range from 90 days to 360 days.  The City will strive to have the majority to be age of the accounts to be between 90 days and 135 days old.


	

	14
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)?
	The amount paid in 2009 was over $75,000.  
	

	15
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	What has been the historical rate of return or liquidation rate provided by any incumbent(s), and/or what is anticipated or expected as a result of this procurement?

	The light accounts have a rate of return of approximately 8%, the BIA’s have a rate of return over 50% and most of the rest of rest of our debt has between 10%- 20% rate of return. 
	

	16
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	To what extent will the location of the bidder’s call center and/or corporate headquarters have a bearing on any award(s)?
	None, but on request of the City and at the Vendor’s cost, the Vendor will need to be available to the City at the City’s place of business for any required meetings. 
	

	17
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	Can you please provide greater explanation of your expectations related to any required subcontracting to minority-owned, women-owned, or other types or categories of small or disadvantaged businesses? For example, what is required with the proposal, and what is required to comply during the term of the contract?
	1. Submit the Outreach plan as part of the proposal package.

2. The City will review the response to the outreach plan to ensure the vendor has made a successful and deliberate effort to achieve outreach goals as established by SMC 20.42.010.  

3. At the request of the City, Vendors must furnish evidence of the Vendor’s compliance, including documentation of their efforts during the term of the contract based on their outreach plan.     
	

	18
	01/18/10
	01/26/10
	Is the interview portion of scoring worth forty points or fifteen points?  There is a discrepancy.
	15 points
	

	19
	01/25/10
	01/26/10
	Will the city of Seattle allow subcontracting with a licensed Canadian agency?


	Yes.  Subcontractors must be licensed and Vendor will need to have an agreement with Subcontractor.  
	

	20
	01/25/10
	01/26/10
	Does the City collect on judgments?
	Yes.  The City Attorney’s Office handles all high dollar accounts.  The amounts begin from $2500 - $5000 and above.
	

	21
	01/25/10
	01/26/10
	Will all or most primary placements be given to the vendor who is awarded the contract?
	Yes.
	

	22
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 5.6 “Contractor Fees / Cost:  On what authority in the Washington statutes is the addition of the fee permitted?
	RCW 19.16.500
	

	23
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 5.4 “Collection Requirements” fourth paragraph:  

What does the City consider “the national average” in terms of rate of return? 

Our experience is that collectability and recovery rates for specific portfolios can vary widely depending upon factors that include, but are not limited to, age of accounts at time of placement, amount and type of previous collection attempts, availability of Social Security Numbers or FEIN, number of accounts requiring skip tracing, demographics of the debtors, average balance, geographic region of the debtors, etc. In addition, the City has various types of debts where some may be more collectible than others.
	The City will look at national averages for collections activity that mirror our business.  In example – utility collections against national utility collections averages (understanding there may be differences due to information and timeliness of debt.  
	

	24
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 5.4 “Collection Requirements,” #3:  Please clarify what you mean by “guaranteed funds.”
	The collection agency would ‘guarantee’ the funds to be good and we would not be responsible if a client payment were to be dishonored or returned.  
	

	25
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 5.11 “Reports” first paragraph: Attachment B is a list of suggested reports that may be required.” 

Vendor assumes there is no “Attachment B,” but that the reports listed in section 5.11 are the ones that may be required, correct?
	Correct. The required reports are listed in section 5.11 of the RFP.  
	

	26
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 8. “Evaluation Process” first paragraph:  What are the criteria for determining whether a proposal is “responsive and responsible”?
	1. Proposal submitted on time

2. Legal name provided

3. Min qualifications provided. Mandatory requirements provided.

4. Vendor Questionnaire completed w/legal and financial information deemed acceptable.

5. Requested format and number of proposals received.

6. Equal Benefits form submitted.

7. Proposal Format and Response submitted.

8. Outreach from provided.

9. Contract exception page provided, if applicable.


	

	27
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	RFP Section 8. “Evaluation Process” first paragraph: On what basis will points be awarded related to the Outreach Plan?
	The Outreach plan will be evaluated on affirmative efforts and the commitment to goals that the Vendor proposes to be reasonably achievable.  
	

	28
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	24a Are proposed Women or Minority Business Enterprise subcontractors required to be certified?

24b  If yes, do they need to be certified by the City of Seattle or is it acceptable to be certified by other state, federal, or municipal government certifying entities?

24c  What, if any, are the City’s percentage goals for first-tier subcontracting and second-tier subcontracting?

24d  In section C. of the form, what percentage goals, if any, does the City have for employment of minorities and/or women by the prime contractor?
	24a  No.  The Vendor should be registered in the City’s database @ http://www2.ci.seattle.wa.us/VendorRegistration/
24b  The Vendor can self certify.

24c  See Response to Question  23

24d  See Response to Question 23
	

	29
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	What is the overall recovery rate over a period of 12 months from your current agency?

	See response under question # 11.
	

	30
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	In reference to section 5.14 regarding the 90 day trial period.  What are the specific requirements of an agency in the first 90 days in regards to contract terms, reporting, and liquidations?
	The Vendor is expected to perform in accordance with the contract, scope of work and the Vendor’s proposal.  
	

	31
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	What is your process for collections on mail return or skipped accounts
	Our process would be to research and resend notices if new information is discovered.
	

	32
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	What is the current contingency fee or other fees currently be billed by any of the incumbents, by category?


	Our existing NCO contract can be found online at http://www.seattle.gov/HTML/business/contracting.htm 


	

	33
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	In reference to section 5.4 of The Request for Proposal:  Regarding placements of recalled accounts from the current vendor if a new contract is awarded….are these secondary referrals eligible for a different fee?
	Yes – the secondary placements would be eligible for a different fee.  See response to question #2.
	

	33
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	In reference to the RFP Proposal and Format section regarding Vendor fees and costs.  The Collection Agency shall accrue interest on penalties, fees and costs at the rate of twelve percent per annum upon assignment to collections from the City, and only while in active collection status.  All interest collected will be retained by the City.  Would this interest accrue on the principle amount only and not the collection fee?
	Interest would accrue on principal.
	

	34
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	Does the city currently have a city statute that allows collection costs?
	It is a state law – see response to question #18
	

	35
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	In reference to section 5.3 Electronic Interface in the bullet points it states: Provide information on account status changes daily.  Would you please elaborate on what you would need specifically on a daily basis?
	We would want payment information and account status information pertaining to disputes, cease and desist etc.
	

	36
	01/27/10
	01/28/10
	If an agency is not currently licensed in Canada, but willing to license if awarded the contract; does this impact your decision in any way?


	That would be acceptable. Agency must provide a timeline when license will be acquired. 
	

	37
	01/29/10
	01/29/10
	The Collection Agent will be responsible for all costs and recover said costs after the principle amount has been paid in full to the City.


	On a partial payment, the collector may be compensated as the dollars are received but the City will want to continue collection efforts until the full principle amount is paid to the City.
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Proposal Format & Response



PROPOSAL FORMAT AND RESPONSE:

Proposers shall respond to the Proposal in the following format

Introduction:  Provide general information your company background and business operations. Include:


· Length of time in business; 

· Number of employees; 

· Location of headquarters; 

· Organizational structure; 

· Any additional information you deem appropriate to understand your business operations.

Experience:  List your experience in working on Seattle area collections for public agencies.

Local Business:  Describe your local business presence.  If you do not have a local business, describe how you would address accessibility and communications and establishing a community presence.

Collection Efforts: Provide a description of your collection efforts, and include precollection and secondary collection efforts, so the City understands all steps that you routinely do to collect on a debt.  Also describe how your process changes for aged accounts. If you have a current City of Seattle contract, provide a count of the following for your own collection efforts (if you have a subcontractor, do not report the subcontractor in the following).  


· How many accounts you handled within the contract;


· Of those, how many did you contact by letter only.


· Of those debtors that did not respond to the initial letter, how many did you contact by one phone call;


· Of those debtors that did not respond to the inital letter of one phone call, how many did you contact by multiple phone calls.


Recovery Rate: Provide information as to success in collection experience (i.e., recovery factor).  Identify the time period.  Use only the recovery rate for your company collection efforts; do not include results from subcontractors if any.  Include pre-collection and secondary collection recovery rates.  If you have a City of Seattle contract, use the recovery rate for that contract.  Note that the City may also compare your responses to any City of Seattle data on those same results as part of the evaluation.  If you do not have a current City of Seattle account, provide a recovery rate for an account in the Seattle area for similar debt collection (utilities etc) or if none is available, provide and explain the contract that you are supplying recovery rates for.  The recovery factor shall be expressed by the following criteria:


· Total dollars referenced and total dollars collected;


· Number of accounts fully collected, broken down by age (30, 60, 90 days, 1 year, 5 years and beyond 5 years), as well as the average dollar value of the debts;


· Number of accounts partially collected, compared to the total amount due, broken down by age as above.


Complaints:    Provide a copy of all complaints your firm has had with the Better Business Bureau, any formal complaints filed to any other reporting agency.

Confidentiality:  Describe your internal control process to maintain confidentiality. 


System Capabilities/Reporting: The proposal shall provide a description of all essential systems that support the City for the technical processes described in the RFP including:

· Provide information on the type of computer system used to support the scope of services, including but not limited to, automated data transfers to support account referrals and reporting, and automated account status tracking, remote access, systems integration with sub-Vendors and reporting.  Review of this information by the City shall not be construed as a buy off on the adequacy of the Vendor’s computer system.  The Vendor shall be solely responsible for meeting the computer automation requirements as delineated in this contract.


· Description of the information and communication technology system’s hardware 


· Description of the safeguards utilized to protect sensitive data


· Description of the information technology’s software and its adaptability to the City

· Description of the communications system proposed to be used by the City to access cases in active collections


· Description and credentials of the data processing personnel committed to the program


· Description of operational plan for recovery from a major disaster


Performance Plan:  Provide a specific and detailed plan of the collection services to be offered, including the specific procedures to be employed, time frame of the various activities, accounts referral procedures (including the handling of manual referrals), and anticipated recovery at one year and at two year intervals. 

Subcontractors: If you intend to use or have used subcontractors, identify the subcontractors and share of work. For City of Seattle contractors, the City may supply that information from the public record to supplement the information provided herein. Provide a description of procedures for controlling the referral of accounts to other Subcontract Agencies including a description on the methods used by the Subcontract Agencies in the collection of accounts referred.  If you identify subcontractors, the City will seek references from those subcontractors to verify the ease and quality of the subcontracting coordination and collaboration in supporting the contract goals.  Provide a name and contact person for the subcontracting agency  that the City may use as a reference.

Vendor Fees/Costs:  Clearly state the fee for each account or categories of accounts.  The stated fee shall cover any and all costs incurred by the Collection Agency for the performance of comprehensive collection services as contemplated in this contract, e.g., including skip trace costs.  No fee shall be charged for accounts not collected.


For all accounts referred by the City, unless otherwise instructed, the Vendor’s fee shall be added by the Vendor to the principal amount of the debt collected by the Vendor from the debtor, and deducted by the Vendor prior to remitting the principal amount to the City, as presently authorized by state law. 


Should there be changes in laws or City policies which prescribe/allow a different method for recovering collection Vendor fees; the Vendor shall modify its methods accordingly, upon instruction from the Treasury Director.


The Collection Agency shall accrue interest on penalties, fees and costs at the rate of twelve percent per annum upon assignment to collections from the City, and only while in active collection status.  All interest collected will be retained by the City.


Transition Plan:  Provide a transition plan that will show ability to provide services within than thirty days from the contract execution date. Indicate staffing capacity or ability to staff rapidly when collection accounts are referred.  Provide a plan that shows the steps you would perform for an orderly transition. 

Performance Capability:  


1
Provide documentation certifying the Contractor is licensed to successfully perform collection services within the State of Washington, Nationwide, and in Canada.  


2
Provide at least three references (with contact names and addresses for verification) of other governmental agencies or private companies for which services, similar to the complexity of services and volume of listings contemplated in this RFP. 
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